
10995Federal Register / Vol. 60, No. 39 / Tuesday, February 28, 1995 / Proposed Rules

Energy, U.S. Department of Energy, EE–
33, 1000 Independence Ave, SW,
Washington, DC 20585 or other such
address as DOE may publish in the
Federal Register.

(b) Included in this report should be
the following information:

(1) Number of new light duty motor
vehicles acquired;

(2) Number of new light duty
alternative fueled vehicles acquired;

(3) Number of alternative fueled
vehicles that are required to be
acquired;

(4) Number of alternative fueled
vehicle credits requested for:

(i) alternative fueled vehicles acquired
in excess of required acquisition
number; and

(ii) alternative fueled vehicles
acquired in model year prior to model
year in which alternative fueled vehicle
acquisition requirements first apply;

(5) Purchase of alternative fueled
vehicle credits:

(i) Credit source; and
(ii) Date of Purchase;
(6) Sale of alternative fueled vehicle

credits:
(i) Credit purchaser; and
(ii) Date of Sale.

Subpart G—Investigations and
Enforcement

§ 490.600 Purpose and scope.
This subpart sets forth the rules

applicable to investigations under titles
III, IV, V, and VI of the Act and to
enforcement of section 501, 503(b), 507
or 508 of the Act, or any regulation
issued under such sections.

§ 490.601 Powers of the Secretary.
For the purpose of carrying out titles

III, IV, V, and VI of the Act, DOE may
hold such hearings, take such
testimony, sit and act at such times and
places, administer such oaths, and
require by subpena the attendance and
testimony of such witnesses the
production of such books, papers,
correspondence, memoranda, contracts,

agreements, or other records as the
Secretary of Transportation is
authorized to do under section 505(b)(1)
of the Motor Vehicle Information and
Cost Savings Act (15 U.S.C.
§ 2005(b)(1)).

§ 490.602 Special orders.
(a) DOE may require by general or

special orders that any person—
(1) File, in such form as DOE may

prescribe, reports or answers in writing
to specific questions relating to any
function of DOE under this part; and

(2) Provide DOE access to (and for the
purpose of examination, the right to
copy) any documentary evidence of
such person which is relevant to any
function of DOE under this part.

(b) File under oath any reports and
answers provided under this section or
as otherwise prescribed by DOE, and file
such reports and answers with DOE
within such reasonable time and at such
place as DOE may prescribe.

§ 490.603 Prohibited acts.
It is unlawful for any person to violate

any provision of section 501, 503(b), or
507 of the Act, or any regulations issued
under such sections.

§ 490.604 Penalties and Fines.
(a) Civil penalties. Whoever violates

§ 490.603 of this part shall be subject to
a civil penalty of not more than $5,000
for each violation.

(b) Willful violations. Whoever
willfully violates § 490.603 of this part
shall pay a criminal fine of not more
than $10,000 for each violation.

(c) Repeated violations. Any person
who knowingly and willfully violates
§ 490.603 of this part, after having been
subjected to a civil penalty for a prior
violation of § 490.603 shall pay a
criminal fine of not more than $50,000
for each violation.

§ 490.605 Statement of enforcement
policy.

DOE may agree not to commence an
enforcement proceeding, or may agree to

settle an enforcement proceeding, if the
person agrees to come into compliance
in a manner satisfactory to DOE.

§ 490.606 Proposed assessments and
orders.

DOE may issue a proposed assessment
of, and order to pay, a civil penalty in
a written statement setting forth
supporting findings of violation of the
Act or a relevant regulation of this part.
The proposed assessment and order
shall be served on the person named
therein by certified mail, return-receipt
requested, and shall become final for
DOE if not timely appealed pursuant to
§ 490.607 of this part.

§ 490.607 Appeals.

(a) In order to exhaust administrative
remedies, on or before 30 days from the
date of issuance of a proposed
assessment and order to pay, a person
must appeal a proposed assessment and
order to the Office of Hearings and
Appeals, U.S. Department of Energy,
1000 Independence Avenue, SW,
Washington, DC 20585.

(b) Proceedings in the Office of
Hearings and Appeals shall be subject to
subpart H of 10 CFR part 205 except
that—

(1) Appellant shall have the ultimate
burden of persuasion;

(2) Appellant shall have right to a
trial-type hearing on contested issues of
fact only if the hearing officer concludes
that cross examination will materially
assist in determining facts in addition to
evidence available in documentary
form; and

(3) The Office of Hearings and
Appeals may issue such orders as it may
deem appropriate on all other
procedural matters.

(c) The determination of the Office of
Hearings and Appeals shall be final for
DOE.
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